
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




51 West Neighborhood Letter of Intent 
RHD Properties, LLC 
September 9, 2020 1 


September 9, 2020 
 
LETTER OF INTENT  
TO THE PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 
51 WEST NEIGHBORHOOD 
 
A mixed use neighborhood located in the northwest limit of the City of Stoughton adjacent 
to USH 51, comprising 68.15 acres of land just south of Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road. 
 
Owner:   RHD Properties, LLC 
   1081 Eagle CT 


Edgerton, WI 53534 
   Contact: Bob Dvorak 
   (608) 712-2048 
 
Consultant Services: MSA Professional Services, Inc. 
(planner, surveyor, engineer) 1702 Pankratz Street 
   Madison, WI  53704 
   Contacts: Kevin Lord, Steve Tremlett 
   (608) 242-7779 
 
Project Overview – RHD Properties, LLC is proud to submit this concept for a 68.15-acre mixed use 
neighborhood with 28 lots (plus, seven outlots) in the northwest limits of the City of Stoughton – just south of 
Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road and split by USH 51.  There are two commercial lots adjacent to USH 51, totaling 
14.94 acres, that will provide a mix of retailers and businesses that would serve nearby residential neighborhoods 
and commuters (e.g., grocers, retailers, medical offices, financial offices, limited- and full-service restaurants, and 
other similar commercial uses).  The remainder of the neighborhood will include a mix of residential unit types, 
from single-family to small and large multi-family buildings, providing a balanced neighborhood adjacent to 
shopping and inclusive of open space, parks and trails.  The description below provides the breakdown of uses 
per side of USH 51. 
   


 West side of USH 51: 2 commercial lots (14.94 acres), 11 single-family lots, 4 multi-family lots (142 
units), 3 independent living condo lots (38 units), and 4.49-acre park.   


 East side of USH 51: 1 multi-family lot (160 units), 9 duplex lots (18 units), and a 6.55-acre park. 
 
Existing Conditions - Presently the project area includes three city parcels split by USH 51 with two parcels 
(051001185012 and 051001180412, totaling 51.25 acres) on the west side and one parcel (051001180412, 16.9 
acres) on the east side. Currently, all three parcels are being farmed with a pocket of woodlands along Rutland-
Dunn Town Line Road in the northwest quadrant.  
 
Relationship to Nearby Properties – The proposed development is broken into two developments split by 
USH 51.  The surrounding uses are as follows: 
 


 Westside of USH 51: single-family/farmland/woodlands to the north, and farmland the west, and 
commercial/industrial/single-family to the south.   


 Eastside of USH 51: farmland to the north, (rural) single-family to the east, and single 
family/duplex/commercial to the south.  







51 West Neighborhood Letter of Intent 
RHD Properties, LLC 
September 9, 2020 2 


Urban Service Area Amendment – The proposed subdivision is currently just outside of the Stoughton 
Urban Service Area; however, the 2017 Comprehensive Plan shows most of the area in the short-term growth 
area.  An Urban Service Area amendment will be required to allow this development to move forward. 
 
Comprehensive Plan – The proposed subdivision is located in an area designated as the Northwest 
Planned Mixed Use (MU) Area, which is intended for a mix of commercial, office, light industrial and higher-
intensity residential uses.  Based on the Future Land Use Map, Planned MU is intended for residential buildings 
of three or more units; however, additional statements in the policy allow for more flexibility, as follows: 
  


 “The City should carefully monitor the development of multi-family housing within Planned Mixed Use 
areas in order to support the City’s goal of maintaining its predominately single-family character.” 
 


 “The Planned Mixed Use category is intended to allow consideration of a range of uses and zoning 
districts, with the understanding that the appropriate combination and arrangement of uses and zoning 
districts will be approved on a case-by-case basis.”  


 


RHD Properties, LLC has proposed duplex lots along Velkommen Way (east of Nygaard Street) to provide a 
natural extension of the single-family and duplex neighborhood to the south, as well as to provide a smooth 
transition to the rural single-family homes east of the development. Higher-density residential units are proposed 
north of Velkommen Way on Lot 19.  This provides increased density in the overall neighborhood and establishes 
a smooth transition from residential to the potential future commercial development to the north (shown in the 
2006 Linnerud Detailed Neighborhood Plan).  
 
On the west side of USH 51, RHD Properties, LLC proposes a mix of residential unit types from single-family to 
side-by-side condos to larger multi-family buildings. As proposed in the current Planned Mixed Use designation, 
high-density residential is preferred adjacent to intensive industrial/commercial to the south and planned 
commercial to the north and west (within this development).  However, to provide for a balanced neighborhood, 
RHD Properties, LLC is proposing to include a mix of unit types along the west end of the neighborhood concept, 
including some single-family lots. The proposed 9 single-family lots are compatible with the existing single-family 
lots to the south at 1497 Oak Opening Drive and 1509 Oak Opening Drive (as opposed to more intensive multi-
family buildings). Lots 4 and 5 help to maintain higher-density in the overall neighborhood, affording other lots to 
provide lower-density residential options.  The proposed independent living development (on Lots 1-3) provides 
housing options for seniors to “age in place” (i.e., remain in the community as they age).  Should seniors move 
into these independent living developments, the City’s existing (older) housing stock would become available as 
an affordable housing option for families and other individuals.   
 
Project Summary 


 DEVELOPMENT & ZONING: Residential densities will vary by lot, but average 10.8 units per acre on 
the west side and 24.8 units per acre on the east side. This matches the intent of the Planned Mixed 
Use designation in the Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. Commercial building intensities may vary 
because of the more urban nature of proposed development. Lots 1-5 and 19 may be zoned planned 
development, while the remainder of the lots may fall within conventional zoning standards.  
 


 PARK/OPEN SPACE: This concept proposes over 10 acres of parkland, inclusive of paved paths 
through stormwater management outlots. There is a planned 4.49-acre neighborhood park in the center 
of the neighborhood on the west side of USH 51. Within this park, are opportunities for six pickleball 
courts, a shelter with restrooms, a playground, a gazebo/seating area, and an open field for sports/play.  
A multi-use trail will extend along Dvorak Drive adjacent to the park, providing pedestrian access to the 
rest of the neighborhood and future adjoining neighborhoods.  Outlots 1 and 2 will provide preserved 
(wooded) open space with a trail that connects to the proposed park. On the east side of USH 51, there 
is a planned 6.55-acre park (includes roughly 3.5 acres dedicated to stormwater management) with a 
trail connecting the park to the neighborhood (and beyond).   
 







51 West Neighborhood Letter of Intent 
RHD Properties, LLC 
September 9, 2020 3 


 TRAIL/SIDEWALK NETWORK: Paved multi-use paths are proposed on both sides of USH 51.  On the 
west side of USH 51, paths are proposed along Oak Opening Drive, Dvorak Drive (west of Oak 
Opening Drive), and through Outlot 2.  This network will include an additional paved trail through Outlot 
1 that could connect to future extensions west along Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road.  On the east side 
of USH 51, a paved path will run along the eastern edge of the neighborhood through Outlot 7and the 
proposed park space (Outlot 6) and terminate in the northeast corner of the neighborhood.  Future 
connections by the City could link this path to Howard Heggstad Park and Virgin Lake Park.  The intent 
is to have these two paths connect across USH 51 via lands to the north (the Linnerud property on the 
east and RHD Properties, LLC on the west).  Sidewalks will be provided on both sides of all public 
streets, except where a multi-use path is planned, along Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road and along USH 
51 frontage.  
 


 ROADWAYS and ACCESS: The western portion of the development includes public access via Oak 
Opening Drive, Dvorak Drive, Master Lane and Apprentice Lane.  Dvorak Drive is proposed as a 
collector street for this development and future development to the west.  To provide quality access for 
the growth of the west side, RHD Properties, LLC would like the City to support a full- or limited-access 
intersection at Dvorak Drive and USH 51.  Roby Rd (Deer Point Drive) may or may not extend in the 
future west, leaving Jackson Street and Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road as the primary connections 
west.  Dvorak Drive provides the greater benefit to the City with access to the west and will provide 
better spacing between USH 51 intersections between Roby Road and Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road 
(as compared to Velkommen Way).  This neighborhood concept reserves a portion of the 100-ft right-of-
way to allow Rutland Dunn Town Line Road to extend east of USH 51 per the 2006 Linnerud Detailed 
Neighborhood Plan.   
 
On the east side of USH 51, access is provided via Velkommen Way and Roby Road (via Nygaard 
Street). Nygaard Street is extended to the northern limits of the development with a temporary 
hammerhead turnaround to connect to future development of the Linnerud property. RHD Properties, 
LLC (with support from the City) is requesting closing Velkommen Way intersection with USH 51 once 
Rutland Town Line Road is extended (east of USH 51) or traffic does not appear to be an issue after full 
buildout of the east side of 51 West Neighborhood.  


 


 TRAFFIC: The developer (with assistance from MSA Professional Services) will conduct a Traffic 
Impact Analysis (TIA), or trip generation study, for the 51 West Neighborhood to support potential 
intersection and access improvements along USH 51. The traffic study will be based on the approved 
concept, and with support of the City, will aide in discussions with the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation. 


 
 UTILITIES: MSA is coordinating the water and sewer service with the City of Stoughton.  It is currently 


anticipated that the development on both sides of USH 51 will gravity drain to the sanitary manhole 
located at the rear yard connection of Lots 183 and 184 of the Blue Heron Addition to John Nygaard’s 
Virgin Lake Estates.  The sanitary will then gravity flow down Virgin Lake Drive to Roby Road and 
ultimately to the interceptor on Kings Lynn Road. The watermain will continue along Nygaard Street in 
anticipation of a future loop back to the north to Kings Lynn Rd. and to a potential future connection at 
Oak Opening Drive. 


 
 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT: As shown, there are four wet ponds for pre-treatment and five 


infiltration ponds that will serve this development and manage off-site runoff (from the south and east of 
Outlot 7).  The stormwater management system is intended to control peak runoff rates for events 
ranging from the 1-year through the 100-year event.  Additionally runoff volumes will be controlled for 
the annual average rainfall record (per county and state standards) but also for events ranging from the 
1-year through the 100-year event.  This last requirement is necessary to prevent volume related flood 
elevation increases in landlocked basins which lie downstream from the proposed site.  Note that these 







51 West Neighborhood Letter of Intent 
RHD Properties, LLC 
September 9, 2020 4 


requirements will need to be met regardless of on-site development density and potential changes in 
drainage patterns within the site. 


 
 NATURAL FEATURES: The 51 West Neighborhood incorporates a mix of uses and densities, while 


also providing for open space – specifically, adjacent to existing developed lands.  The proposed outlots 
preserves open space through two park spaces, trail corridors (min. of 50-ft wide), preserved woodlands 
and stormwater management areas. Additional information on the area’s natural features is provided 
below. 


 
o The Comprehensive Plan identifies lands along USH 51 just south of the Rutland-Dunn Town 


Line Road as a potential environmental corridor, but this needs verification.  Per the natural 
resource base map (Map 2 in the Comp Plan), this designation is based on woodlands that no 
longer exist.  These lands are not identified in the CARPC Environmental Corridor and there 
are no floodplain or surface water features. 
 


o There are woodlands adjacent to Rutland-Dunn Town Line Road (in the northwest corner of 
the development), which will be preserved along the roadway in Outlot 1.  The intent is to build 
a paved trail through this outlot that can be enjoyed by the neighborhood and general public.  
The trail will be designed to preserve mature hardwood trees, as much as possible, and to 
connect to the proposed neighborhood park (Outlot 3). 


 
o Based on the Wisconsin DNR’s surface water data viewer, there is no delineated wetland in 


the development area; however, there was a NRCS wetspot (i.e., wetland soil indicator but too 
small to map) shown in the southern section near USH 51 (west side).  A delineation will be 
necessary in this area based on a site visit by MSA’s assured wetland delineator. 


 







9 94 94 94
458 9249 18


9995
4


999999999999999999999999999999995
2


999944
8 4466 4444


9020


9288


922


918
9166


222444


922
2


930960


9558


904955 99999999999999999922222222222222222222222226666
999999999922222222
66666666666


92266


99224


9222


992
0


88


PPPrrr
innnnnnttt
eeddd


BBByyy


51 WEST SUBDIVISION
CITY OF STOUGHTON, WI


Units SF Acres Provided Difference
West Side 191 280388 6.44 6.43 0.01
East Side* 178 261304 6.01 3.79 2.21
TOTAL 369 541,692 12.44 10.22 2.22


Parland Required ProposedDevelopment


August, 11 2020


PA
V


E
D


  P
A


T
H


PAVED PATH
connect through 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect to 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect through to 


Virgin Lake Park


PAVED PATH


PAVED PATH


9999999999999999999999999999999944444444444444400000000000000000000000
936


999999999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222222444444444444


999999999999999999999999999999916666666666666666666666666666666666
999999999999999999999999999999999914444444444444444444444444
9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999112222222222222222222222222222222
999999999999999990000000088888888888888888888


90000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000


942


992288


99999999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222222222222222222222222266666666666666666666666666666666666
9911888888888


99004
990022


88888899999999999999988888888888888888888888


9930
99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999222222222222222222222222000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000099999999999999999999999999999999999999999999111111


0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000


9999999999999999999999999999999999933333333333333333333334


92222


938
9329999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999666222


999666666666600000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000
9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999995555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555558888888888888888888888888888888888888888888
999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999995555555666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666
9999999999999999995555555555555555555555555555555555554444
999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999555552222222
99995555000000000000000000
999944444444444444448
999999994444444444444444666
94444444444
9944222222222222222222222222
940
938
936
933333333334444
9999999999333333222222
9999300000
999999999922222222222222222222222222222222222222228888888888888888888888888


99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999922222222222666666666666666666


9999999999999999999999999999999992222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222 999992222222222222222222
00000


99999999999999111
88888 9999999999999111
66666666 99999999999999999999111
44444 999999911111111111111
222222222222


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999990888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888


99999999999999999999999999222222222222222444444444444444444444


999999999999999911111111111111111111111111100000000000000000000000000000000000


95566


94444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444442222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222


90


9900


8988


8890


889
6


899
2


95699522222


9999999999999944444444444444444488888888888888888889999999999999999444444444444666666666


924


999999999999999999999999999999999999996666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666
999666222


999999999999999444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444400000000000000000000000999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999333333333333333333333333333333333333888888888888888


9996666666666666666666669999999999999999999999999999966666666666664444444444444444444


9999444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444
9933333


9366666666666666666666699999999999999999999333333333333322 9999999999999999999999999999990000000000000000000000000000000000000000000
6666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666


9999999000
44444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


99999999999999222


95555555555555555555555555555555555550


99900
66


995500


9999999999999999999999999999999999999999900000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000666666666666666666666666666666666666666666


999934


99332


99228


99955500


999999999999999995555555555555555000000


9999999999999996666666666644444444444


9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999993333333333333333333333336


992200


88888888


99999999933333333344444444444444444444


999999999999999933333333333333
222222222222222222222


9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999933333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333222222222222222222222222222222222222


993300


99999999999999999999999999999999999999999992222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999992222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


920


999999999999999999999990000000000000000000000000000000004444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


99999999996666622222


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999996666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


9999999999999999999999966666666666666666666666660000000000


9995544


994488


9999444444444
22222


999999999999999999999999999999999444444444444444444444444444444444444444400000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000


99999999999222222222222222222222
888888888888


9244


99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222224444444444444444444444


922222222222222222222222222222222222
0


99999999999999999999999999999990000044444


904


8966666666666666


999999999666666222222


9999990000066666666666666666666666666666666666666


yyy:::
stttrrr
eeeeeemmm


llleeettt
ttt,,,
FFFil
e:
\\\\\m


sssaaa
---ppp
s.c
om


\fs
\PPP
rrro
joee
cts


\1
999000
000000
ssssss\\\111


999000
999000
sss\\\111
88999888808899


99911 66
\\\ 6
111999
000999
111000
0111111111111111111111111111111111111
\\\\\\\\\\\\GG
IS\\
11999
099
10
0011
_CC
oooooooooooooonnnnnnnnnnn
ccccccccccccccccccceee
pppttt
.m
xxxddd


Pr
inttttttttttttt


PA
V


D
  P


A
T


A
T


PA
V


E
D


  P
A


T
H


PAVED PATH
connect through 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect to 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect through to 


Virgin Lake Park


PAVED PATPAVED PATH


PAVED PATPAVED PATH


Open Field


pickelball 
courts(6)


playground


shelter w/ 
bathrooms


l
gazebo


DVORAK DRIVE


O
A


K
 O


PE
N


IN
G


 D
R


IV
E


DVORAK DRIVE N
YG


A
A


R
D


  S
TR


EE
T


VELKOMMEN  WAY


POTENTIAL ROUNDABOUT
(Reserve Right-of-Way)


SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS (Total 11 Units)


SMALL MULTI-FAMILY LOTS (72 units)


LARGE MULTI-FAMILY LOTS (286 units)


COMMERCIAL LOTS


A
PP


R
EN


TI
C


E 
 L


A
N


E


U
SH


  5
1


RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE ROAD


POTENTIAL ROUNDABOUT
(Reserve Right-of-Way)


FUTURE ROAD EXTENSION
(100-FT Right-of-Way)


DISCLAIMER: 
This neighborhood concept illustrates a proposed road layout, storm water management infrastructure, and lot layout with speculative development.  The number of lots and design 
for specifi c sites are generalized based on what fi ts the location and intended use for the area.  Development plans will be proposed by property owners at a future date based on 
market conditions and interests, and will be subject to City review (per zoning and subdivision ordinance) with this concept providing guidance to general connectivity and use.


MASTER  LANE







9 94 94 94
458 9249 18


9995
4


99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999995
2


99999944
8 4466 4444


9020


9288


922


918
9166


222444


922
2


930960


9558


904955 9999999999999999999922222222222222222222222266666
99999999222222
666666666666666666


92266


99224


9222


992
0


88


PPPrrr
innnnnnttt
eeddd


BBByyy


50-FT PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT


51 WEST SUBDIVISION
               (ALTERNATIVE DESIGN)        CITY OF STOUGHTON, WI


Units SF Acres Provided Difference
West Side 186 273048 6.27 6.06 0.21
East Side* 178 261304 6.01 3.52 2.49
TOTAL 364 534,352 12.27 9.58 2.69


Parland Required ProposedDevelopment


August, 11 2020


PAVED PATH
connect through 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect to 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect through to 


Virgin Lake Park


PAVED PATH


PA
V


E
D


  P
A


T
H


PA
V


E
D


 P
A


T
H


9999999999999999999999999999944444444444440000000000000000000000
936


99999999999999999999999999999999222222222222222444444444444


99999999999999999999999999999999166666666666666666666666666666666666
999999999999999999999999999999999914444444444444444444444444
99999999999999999999999999999999999999911222222222222222222222222222222
999999999999999999900000000000088888888888888888888


90000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000


942


992288


9999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222222222222226666666666666666666666666666
991188888888


9990004
99000222


8888888889999999999999999999999998888888888888888888888888888888


9930
999999999999999999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222222222200000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000099999999999999999911111111111111111111111111111111111111


00


9999999999999999999999999999933333333333333333334


92222


938
93299999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999962


9666666660000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000
99999999999999999999999999999999999999999955555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555558888888888888888888888888888888888888888888
999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999555556666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666
99999999999999999955555555555555555555555555555544
9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999995552222
9999555500000000000000000
99944444444444448
99999994444444444444444666
944444444
99442222222222222222222222222
940
938
936
933333333333333333344444
9999999999933333332222222
999993000000
999999999992222222222222222222222222222222222222222288888888888888888888888888888


9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999992222222222266666666666666666666


9999999999999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222 99999222222222222222222
000000


999999999999999111
888888 999999999999999999111
666666666 9999999999999999999999999999999999999111
44444 99999999111111111111111
22222222222222


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999908888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888


99999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222444444444444444444444444


99999999999999999999911111111111111111111111111100000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000


95566


9444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222


90


9900


8988


8890


889
6


899
2


95699522222


999999999999999944444444444444444488888888888888888899999999999999999999944444444444446666666666


924


99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666
99999999999999999999999999999999999999666666666666666666666666666666666662222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222


9999999999994444444444444444444444444440000000000000000000000000000000000999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999933333333333333333388888888888888


999999999999999999966666666699999666666666666666644444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


9999444444444444444444444444444444444444444
993333


93666666666666666666666666666666699999999999999999999999999999999333333333333333322 99999999999999999999999999999999999999999000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000
666666666666666666666666666666666


9999999999000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000
4444444444444444444444444444444444444


999999999999999222


955555555555555555555555555555550


9999000
666


995500


99999999999999999999999999999999990000000000000000000000000000000000066666666666666666666666666666666666666666666


999934


99332


99228


99955500


999999999955555555550000


9996644


99933333333333333333333333333333366666666666666666


992200


88888888


99999999333333444444444444


9999999999993333333333333333333333
2222222222222222222222222222


9999999999999999999999999999999999999933333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333222222222222222222222222222222222222


993300


99999999999999999999999999999999999992222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222266666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999992222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222224444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


920


99999999999999999999999999999999999999999000000000000000000000000000000000004444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


99999999666662222222


9999999996666666666666666666666666666666666666666644444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


999996000000


9995544


994488


99999444444
222


99999444400000000


99999999999999999992222222222222222222222222
8888888888


9244


9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222444444444444444444


922222222222222222222222222222222222222
0


99999000004444444


904


896666666666666


99999966666222222


9999000000000000666666666666666666666666666666666


yyy:::
stttrrr
eeeeeemmm


llleeettt
ttt,,,
FFFil
e:
\\\\\m


sssaaa
---ppp
s.c
om


\fs
\PPP
rrro
joee
cts


\1
999000
000000
ssssss\\\111


999000
999000
sss\\\111
88999888808899


99911 66
\\\ 6
111999
000999
111000
0111111111111111111111111111111
\\\\\\\\GG
IS\\
11999
099
10
0011
_C
ooooooooooonnnnnnnnn
ccccccccccccccccceee
pppttt
.m
xxxddd


Pr
intttttttttttttttttt


50-FT PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT50-FT PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT


PAVED PATH
connect through 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect to 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect through to 


Virgin Lake Park


PAVED PATPAVED PATH


P
V


D
 P


A
T


PA
V


E
D


PA
T


PA
V


E
D


  P
A


T
H


PPA
VVVV


 PP
AA


TT
PA


V
E


D
 P


A
T


H


DVORAK DRIVE


O
A


K
 O


PE
N


IN
G


 D
R


IV
E


DVORAK DRIVE N
YG


A
A


R
D


  S
TR


EE
T


VELKOMMEN  WAY


POTENTIAL ROUNDABOUT
(Reserve Right-of-Way)


SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS (Total 14 Units)


SMALL MULTI-FAMILY LOTS (64 units)


LARGE MULTI-FAMILY LOTS (286 units)


COMMERCIAL LOTS


A
PP


R
EN


TI
C


E 
 L


A
N


E


U
SH


  5
1


RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE ROAD


POTENTIAL ROUNDABOUT
(Reserve Right-of-Way)


FUTURE ROAD EXTENSION
(100-FT Right-of-Way)


DISCLAIMER: 
This neighborhood concept illustrates a proposed road layout, storm water management infrastructure, and lot layout with speculative development.  The number of lots and design 
for specifi c sites are generalized based on what fi ts the location and intended use for the area.  Development plans will be proposed by property owners at a future date based on 
market conditions and interests, and will be subject to City review (per zoning and subdivision ordinance) with this concept providing guidance to general connectivity and use.


MASTER  LANE















Town of 
Madison


Town of 
Blooming Grove


Town  of
Middleton


Town of
BurkeTown of


Black Earth


Town of
Westport


Town of 
Pleasant 
Springs


Town of 
Cottage Grove


Town of 
Mazomanie


Town of 
Sun Prairie


Town of
Cross Plains


Town of Windsor


Town of 
Dunn


Town of Springdale


Town of
Christiana


Town of 
Springfield


Town of 
Montrose


Town of Oregon


Town of 
Dunkirk


Town of
Verona


Town of
Deerfield


Town of
Primrose


Town of
Vermont


Town of Roxbury


Town of
Rutland


Town of
Medina


Town of Bristol


Town of Vienna


Town of
Albion


Town of Dane


Town of
Berry


Town of
Perry


Town of York


Village of
Rockdale


Village of 
Brooklyn


Village of
Shorewood Hills


Village of
Maple Bluff


Village of
Blue Mounds


Village of
Black Earth


Village of
Cambridge


Village of
Belleville


Village of
Deerfield


Village of
Mazomanie


Village of
Cross Plains


Village of
Dane


Village of
Marshall


Village of
Cottage 


Grove


Village of
Mount Horeb


Village of
McFarland


Village of
Oregon


Village of
DeForest


Village of
Waunakee


City of
Edgerton


City of
Monona


City of
Stoughton


City of
Verona


City of
Middleton


City of  
Sun Prairie


City of 
Fitchburg


City of Madison


Brigham
County


Park


Fish Lake
County Park


Salmo
Pond


County
Park


Goodland
  County
    Park


LaFollette
County ParkFish Camp


County Park


Lake View Hill Park 
Historical/Cultural Site


Babcock 
County Park


Viking
County Park


Jenni
& Kyle 


Preserve


Yahara 
Heights
County 


Park


Prairie 
Moraine
County 
Park


McCarthy Youth 
& Conservation
County Park


Lussier 
County
Park


Stewart 
County
Park


Festge
County


Park


Badger 
Prairie
County 
Park


Silverwood
County Park


Token Creek
County Park


Cam-Rock
County Park


Indian Lake 
County Park


Yahara River


Maunesha River


Sugar River


Indian
Lake


Lake
Koshkonong


Lake   Wingra


Fish 
Lake


Crystal Lake


Lake
Waubesa


Lake
Monona


Lake
Kegonsa


Lake Mendota


Scheidegger
Forest


Morton
Forest


Halfway Prairie School
Historical/Cultural Site


Schumacher Farm 
Historical/Cultural Site


Koshkonong Creek


Badfish Creek


Walking Iron
County Park


78


P


Walking Iron 
Wildlife Area


Black Earth Creek 
Sunnyside Unit Wildlife Area


Mt. Vernon Creek
Fishery and Wildlife Area


Door Creek
Wildlife AreaFort Blue Mounds


Historical/Cultural Site


Anderson Farm
County Park


Yah
ara


 Rive
r Token Creek


Tenney Park Lock & DamHistorical/Cultural Site


Lewis Nine 
Springs E-Way


NRA


Falk Wells 
Sugar River 
Wildlife Area


Sugar River 
Basco Unit
Wildlife Area


Waubesa 
Wetlands


Wildlife Area


Sugar River 
Wildlife Area


Blue Mounds
Wildlife Area


Halfway Prairie
Wildlife Area


North Mendota 
Hyer Road Unit
Wildlife Area


North Mendota Prairie UnitWildlife Area


Cherokee Marsh
Wildlife Area


Mud Lake
Wildlife Area


Crystal Lake
Wildlife Area


Springfield 
Hill NRA


Cherokee
Marsh
NRA


Token 
Creek
NRA


Blooming Grove
Drumlins NRA


Holtzman
NRA


14


PQ


Wisconsin River


Mud Lake


Marshall
MillPond


Fish
Lake
NRA


NorthMendotaNRA


Black Earth
Creek NRA


Maunesha 
River NRA


Mendota 
County Park


Ice Age Trail
Property


Ice Age
Trail Property


Ice Age Trail 
Property


Donald 
County Park


Lake Farm
County ParkUpper


Mud
Lake


Lower
Mud
Lake


Hauge Historic District Park
Historical/Cultural Site


E Branch Blue Mounds Creek


Ple
as


an
t V


all
ey


 B
ran


ch


Dorn Creek


Token Cree


k


Sugar R iver


Mu
dC


reek


Swan Creek


Mud 
Cree


k


Sugar Ri ver


Sp
rin


g Cr


eek


Murp
hys


Creek


Spring Valley Creek


Moen Creek


Rutland Branch


E Starkweath
er


Cree
k


Spring Creek


Lit tle Sugar River


Flynn Creek


Milum Creek


Little Door Creek


Ba
dger Mill Creek


Mud
Creek


Mount Vernon Creek


Nolan Cree
k


Ry
an


C r
ee


k


Sixmile Creek


Ge
rm


an
Valle


y Bran
c h


Garf
o o


t C ree
k


Sy
fte


sta
d C


ree
k


Ore gon Branch


Primrose Branch


R oxbury Creek


Fryes Feeder


Pheasa nt Branch


Vermont Creek


Halfway Prairie Creek


Deer Creek


St
ory


Cr
ee


k


E lvers C reek


Yah ara
River


Mau
nesha River


W est Branch Sugar River


Saun ders Cree k


Dunlap Creek


Do
or C


reek


Koshkonong Creek


Black Earth Creek


Morse
Pond


Hook
Lake


Island
Lake


Grass
Lake


Goose
Lake


Bass
Lake


Lake
Belle
View


Rice Lake


Cherokee
Lake


Kittleson Valley Creek


Patrick 
Marsh


K


G


B oh
n C


ree
k


Town of 
Blue Mounds


Hwy 12 Trail


Military Ridge State Trail


Ba
dg


er
S t


a t
eT


r ai
l


South
west Path


Glacial Drumlin Sta te Trail


University Ave Path


Lower Yahara River Trail


Up
pe


r Y
ah


ara
Ri


ver Trail


Nine Springs Creek


Capital
City Trail


Cannon ball
Path


MC


BW 12


Capi
tal


City


W
Sta rkw ea ther


Cr eek


No
rth


Me
nd


ota
Tra


il


Trail
D


G


17


18Phil's 
Woods 
NRA


19 28
21


22


B


1


2


4
23


C


26


5


6


3
24


27


A


E


9


8


7


11 10
12


F Ice
Age Trail


Black
Earth
Creek
NRA


1314


25


15


16


20


Lower Mud 
Lake NRA


MM


Riley-Deppe
County Park


DornCreekWildlife Area
Pheasant
Branch


Conservancy
NRA


Ca
mR oc


k T
r a


il


Brigham
Trail


Pheasant Bra n ch
C o


ns
. Trail


Ice Age Juncti on
Trai l


Vi
kin


g
Tr


ail


Go
rd


on
Cree


k


N


A


Y


S


N


N


A


M


M


N


D


A


Y Y


V


Y


V


P


M


Q


M


M


Q


Q


KK


P


P


K


F


Y


F


F


F


P


M


S


J


J


J


F


J


S


P


ZF


E


E


Z


A


H


A


H


A


G


J


G
J


G


U


U


A


MM


A


D


D


A


D


D


A A


A


N


N


A


A


A


X


N


B
B


A
A


W


W


BB


N


B


N


W


ON


T


T


N


O


T


T


N


C


C


V


V


I


V


I


I


V


C


V V V
V


V


39


39


39


39


39


39


39


94


BB


MS


73


BN


90


BN


KP


78


18


69


92


92


14


MM


73


CV


51


KP


KP


14


78


14


18


78


94


90


1812


51


14
12


1814


19


19


51


12


14


12 9051


19


69


19


19


PD


18


51


90


30


CV 51


12


19


KP


19


78


KP


FF


JJ


KP


14


JJ


JG JG


ID


78


ID


92


JG


JG


JG


JG


PD


PD


92


PB


69


PB


PB


PB


CC


14


MM


51


MM


MM


14


51


73


MN


AB


MN


73


AB


BB


94


TT


TT


BB


BB


73


TT


19


51


CV


DV


DM


94


TT


TV


90


94


151


151


11 3


11 3


151


151


138


11 3


151


151


151


151


151


188


11 3


151


138


134


V V


V V


V V


V V


Dane County
Parks & Open Space Plan


Regional Trail Map
2018 - 2023


Existing and Proposed Regional Trails
Existing Shared-Use Bicycle/Pedestrian Trail


Proposed Shared-Use Bicycle/Pedestrian Trail


Proposed Bicycle/Pedestrian Ferry


Existing Water Trail


Existing Ice Age National Scenic Trail


Ice Age National Scenic Trail Corridor


Dane County Parks System
Recreation Park


Natural Resource Area


Wildlife Area


Historical or Cultural Site


Forest


Trails


COLUMBIA CO.


D
O


D
G


E
 C


O
.


JE
F


F
E


R
S


O
N


 C
O


.


ROCK CO.


GREEN CO.


IO
W


A
 C


O
.


SAUK CO.


0 2 4 6 81


Miles


Map created by Dane County Parks on 9/1/2011, last updated 2/16/2018. Adopted 4.12.18.
File Location: H:\Parks\Mapping\POSP\2018-2023_POSP\POSP2018Trails_11x17.mxd


Data Sources:
Recreation Parks, Forests, Historical/Cultural Sites, 
Wildlife Areas, Natural Resource Area Properties,
Natural Resource Area Boundaries, Trails, 
Proposed Regional Shared-Use Trails and Ferry, 
Water Trails:
Dane County Parks (2017).
Municipalities, Hydrography, Town Boundary: 
Dane County (2017)
Railroad: Dane County (2014).
Ice Age National Scenic Trail, Corridor and Properties:  
Ice Age Trail Alliance (2017).
Existing Bicycle/Pedestrian Trails: Madison Area Metropolitan
Planning Organization (2017).


* More detailed water trail information can be found at: www.capitolwatertrails.org


Proposed Shared-Use Bicycle/Pedestrian Trails
1.  Token Creek Co. Park to Riley Deppe Co. Park
2.  Georgia O'Keeffe Trail
3.  McCarthy Co. Park to Lake Kegonsa State Park
4.  McCarthy Co. Park Connector
5.  Capital City Trail to Glacial Drumlin Trail
6.  Blooming Grove Drumlin to Door Creek Park
7.  Lower Yahara River Trail
8.  Kegonsa Lake Loop (includes on-road segments)
9.  Stoughton to Oregon
10.  Oregon to Waubesa Lake Loop
11.  Fitchburg to Oregon Rail Trail
12.  Oregon to Badger State Trail to Military Ridge State Trail
13.  Sugar River Trail
14.  Sugar River to Mount Horeb
15.  Black Earth Creek to Pope Farm Park to
       Badger Prairie Co. Park
16.  Black Earth Creek (Good Neighbor) Trail
17.  Mazomanie to Sauk City Rail Trail
18.  Highway 12 Trail Connector
19.  Indian Lake Co. Park Spur Trail
20.  North Mendota Trail
21.  Upper Yahara River Trail
22.  DeForest to Sun Prairie
23.  Starkweather Creek Trail
24.  Glacial Drumlin Trail to CamRock
25.  Blue Mounds Loop
26. Sherman Flyer Trail
27. CamRock Co. Park to Silverwood
      Co. Park to City of Edgerton
28. Highway 19 Trail


Water Trails*
A.  Koshkonong Creek
B.  Maunesha River
C.  Starkweather Creek
D.  Yahara Chain
E.  Badfish Creek
F.  Sugar River
G.  Black Earth Creek







S   T   O   U   G   H   T   O   N
£¤51


UVB


£¤51
£¤51


£¤51


£¤51


UVB


UVN


UVN


UVN


UVN


UVA


UVA


UV138


UV138


Y a
h
a
r a


R
i v


e
r


L a k e K e g o n s a


W   South St


Rober t St


  CTH B  


   
 S


pr
in


g 
R


d


    Skaalen Rd


  STH 138  


   
 P


le
as


an
t H


ill
 R


d


N   Page St


   
 S


ta
rr


 S
ch


oo
l R


d


    Roby Rd


   
 W


ill
ia


m
s 


D
r


W   Main St


   
 L


in
co


ln
 A


ve


E   Main St


    Jackson St
   


 J
oh


ns
on


 S
t


   
 H


oe
l A


ve


N 
  V


an
 B


ur
en


 S
t


S 
  P


ag
e 


St


   
 S


ky
lin


e 
D


r


S 
  F


ou
rth


 S
t


    Shadyside Dr


   
 E


as
t S


t


    Aaker Rd


   
 C


ol
lin


s 
R


d


    Taylor Ln


    Norgaren Rd


    Barber Dr


    Rutland-Dunn Town Line Rd


L i
nn


er
ud


Dr


W   Wilson St


   
 N


yg
aa


rd
 S


t


Moline St


Kriedem a n Dr


    West St


    Halverson Rd


S 
  M


on
ro


e 
St


    Giehler Dr


S 
  P


ra
iri


e 
St


Su
nd


t L
n


   
 C


ou
nt


ry
 C


lu
b 


R
d


S 
  A


ca
de


m
y 


St


Hilldale Ln


S 
  V


an
 B


ur
en


 S
t


Hyland Dr


Oa
k v


ie
w


Dr


   
 P


in
e 


St


   
 N


or
dl


an
d 


D
r


    Oak St


S 
  B


ro
ok


ly
n 


D
r


    Furseth Rd


Ash
Ln


    Felland St


    Isham St


   
 B


er
ry


 S
t


    Schroeder Ln


Chapi n


Ln


Not tingha m Rd


    Brooklyn Dr


    Gilrust Ave


    Clyde St


Eisenhower Rd


    Aasen Dr


S 
  G


je
rt


so
n 


St


Burritt


Rd


W   Taft St
Skogdale n Dr


    Vernon St


   
 R


ow
e 


St


Lunde Cir


Indus t r i al Cir


    Ridge St


    Lowell St


    Haggman Rd


E Academy St


    Sheryl Ln


    Duncan Rd


    Otteson Dr


    M
ellum Dr


S 
  Q


ua
m


 D
r


W   Broadway St


    Forton St


W   McKinley St


    
Tra


cy
 Ln


    Truman Rd


    Westchester Cir


    Am
undson Pkw


y


Aspen Rd


   
 C


ot
to


nw
oo


d 
D


r


   
 C


om
m


er
ce


 R
d


    Yahara Rd


    Marie Dr


    Smedal Dr


    Holtan Rd


Business Park Cir


    Carl Ave


    Kegonsa Rd


    
Pa


rad
ise


 D
r


Se ve rson Dr


Course View Dr


N 
M


on
ro


e 
St


Alice Cir


   
 F


al
len


 O
ak


 T
rl


    Meadow Dr


    Roy Ave
   


 Q
ui


nn
 L


n


    Park St


   
 H


ill
 S


t


   
 O


ak
 O


pe
ni


ng
 D


r


   
 E


ig
ht


h 
St


    Highland Ln


    Giles St


Shore ViewDr


    
Oak


woo
d C


t


   
 H


an
so


n 
R


d


    Cedarbrook Ln


    
Apo


llo
 Cir


N 
  M


ad
is


on
 S


t


Pe
te


rs
on


Dr


    Red Oak Dr


    Patterson St


    Skyline Ln


    Blue Heron Ct


    Oakridge W
ay


   
 B


er
ge


n 
Ct


    Clancey Ln


S 
  F


ift
h 


St


    Giles St


    Ridge St


H yland Dr


  C
TH


 N
  


W   Milwaukee St


   
 U


nn
am


ed
  


    Vernon St


    Unnamed  


E   South St


4


3


1 2


MAP 5Stoughton Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
Recreational Routes CITY OF STOUGHTON


381 E. Main St.
Stoughton, WI 53589
Project 52-0617 • 11.27.2018


Î Î Î


ÎÎÎ


A B C D


3


2


1


DCBA


1


2


3


I 0 2,0001,000 Feet


Dane County trail planned
to connect to Lake


Kegonsa State Park, Fish
Camp County Park, the 


Village of McFarland and
the Capital City Trail in 


Madison.


_
LEGEND


RECREATIONAL ROUTES


Bike Route


Existing Trail


Existing Bike Lane


Future Bike Lane


Proposed Multi-Use Trail


Planned Multi-Use Trail


! ! ! ! ! Snowmobile Trail


Note: Existing and planned bike trails, lanes 
and routes are from the 2017 Stoughton 
Bike Transportation Plan and the 2017 City 
of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. The
Planned Dane County Trail is from Dane 
County Parks and Open Space Plan.


DESTINATIONS


k
Future Park
(Approximate Location)


Schools


County Parks


Parks


OTHER ROUTE IMPROVEMENTS


Reconstruction of the bridge at Cooper's
Causeway should include bike/ped
accommodations. The current
configuration under the bridge is unsafe
as bicyclists, pedestrians and motorists
are forced through the same narrow
passage. Improvements should include 
widening the road and separated facilities 
for bike/ped users.


Cooper's Causeway Bridge!2


!1 Bike/Ped Bridge
A bike/ped bridge is recommended
to serve the future residents of the 
Kettle Park West development.


A bike/ped bridge is recommended to 
connect the future RDA Riverwalk to the 
Mandt Park trail network and future 
whitewater park development.


!3 Bike/Ped Bridge


Improvements are recommended at the 
snowmobile trail crossing at Highway 51. 
Improvment options should be investigated 
including signage, HAWK signals, 
pavement markings and/or an underpass.


!4 Snowmobile Trail Crossing





		Dvorak_Development Narrative_LOI_2020_09_09

		19091001_51_West_Concepts_2020_09_08

		51 West Summary

		2018-2023-Dane-County-Parks---Open-Space-Plan-Regional-Trails-Map

		CORP Trails Map






PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
 
 
Tuesday August 18, 2020 at 6:00 pm  
 
This will be a virtual meeting. You can join the meeting using the information below:  
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/655769861 
You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States: +1 (408) 650-3123  
Access Code: 655-769-861  


 


 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Mayor Tim Swadley and 
Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Excused-Tim Riley 
Guests: Matt Swadley 
 
Call to Order  
Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm.  
 
Approval of Minutes from July 21. 2020 
Motion to approve the Minutes from July 21, 2020 by Heili seconded by Hirsch 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Communication; Alder Heili reviewed meeting at dam with Rick Gullickson 
Directors Report-Director Glynn communicated the upcoming Gazebo Music drive in event 
Recreation Update-Director Glynn provided updates on programming 
Youth Center Update-Director Glynn posted survey for parents regarding tutoring opportunities 
 
Bjoin Park Draft Master Plan 
 
Motion to; approve Bjoin Park Master Plan as presented by Hirsch, seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Utilizing budgeted funds for Bjoin Park tennis court replacement to fund Bjoin Park Master Plan Phase I 
improvements 
Motion to; approve Bjoin Park Master Plan funding as presented by Hirsch, seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Cub Scout Pack 161 Park Use 
Motion to approve fees for Cub Scout Pack 162 park use as presented by Heili seconded by Hirsch 
Motion carried 3-0 Swadley abstained 
 
Future Agenda Items 
Park Design Guidelines 
Park Development Fees 
 
Motion to adjourn by Heili seconded by Hirsch  
Motion carried unanimously at 6:50 pm. 
 








 


 


 


 


City of Stoughton 


Park Design Guidelines 
  







 


Contents 
Overview ................................................................................................................................................. 4 


Purpose ............................................................................................................................................... 4 


Mission Statement............................................................................................................................... 4 


Goals ................................................................................................................................................... 4 


General Planning and Design Policies....................................................................................................... 4 


Site Selection and Planning Principles ...................................................................................................... 5 


Park Design and Development Guidelines ................................................................................................ 5 


Community Parks ................................................................................................................................ 6 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 6 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 6 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 6 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 7 


Neighborhood Parks ............................................................................................................................ 7 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 7 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 7 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 7 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 8 


Mini Parks ........................................................................................................................................... 8 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 8 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 8 


Special-Use Parks ................................................................................................................................. 8 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 9 


Trail Corridors & Greenways ................................................................................................................ 9 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 9 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ....................................................................................................... 10 







 


Natural Areas .................................................................................................................................... 10 


Description .................................................................................................................................... 10 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ...................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Consider ............................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Avoid ................................................................................................... 11 


Guidance for Developers ....................................................................................................................... 11 


Design and Review Process for City Parks .......................................................................................... 11 


Site Evaluation Report ....................................................................................................................... 13 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting ...................................................................................... 14 


Minimum Criteria .......................................................................................................................... 14 


Base Criteria .................................................................................................................................. 14 


 


  


  







 


Overview  
Purpose 
The purpose of this document is to provide direction to staff, landscape architects, contractors and 
developers in the design, construction, and maintenance of public parks, open space, trails, and 
recreation facilities in the City of Stoughton. The guidelines will be used as a tool in evaluating 
submittals for all new parks and any significant changes to parks.  


Only improvements where Stoughton Parks and Recreation and/or Stoughton Public Works will assume 
operations and maintenance activities are subject to these guidelines.   


Mission Statement  
The City of Stoughton seeks to provide a park and recreation system that will: meet the needs of our 
current residents and future generations; preserve and protect the City’s open space, water, historical 
and natural resources; and provide a park and recreation program that is designed to enhance our 
quality of life.  


Goals 
· Provide guidance to developers for park site selection and development 
· Create a standard for parks, and park equipment and amenities 


General Planning and Design Policies 
The following policies are intended to provide guidance on the planning and design of all parks and 
recreation facilities in Stoughton: 


· Incorporate public input into park master planning and design to ensure that community needs 
and issues are addressed. Public outreach should include nearby neighbors, likely park users, 
community members, and partner agencies in the park design process. 


· Involve maintenance and recreation program staff in the design process so that maintenance 
and programming requirements are considered during site selection, design, and development. 


· Consider the layout of the surrounding neighborhood when placing park amenities. Situate 
lighting and noise-producing amenities away from the neighboring homes to minimize conflicts.  


· Locate amenities such as playground equipment, picnic shelters, and basketball courts to 
provide visibility from adjoining streets which will promote safety, minimize vandalism, and 
encourage use.  


· Incorporate American with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines into all new parks to facilitate 
site access, circulation, and facility use for people of all ages and abilities.  


· Incorporate new technologies, sustainable design, and conservation-smart elements into all 
park and recreation facility designs to facilitate operational efficiency. This commitment may be 
demonstrated through the use of green building technologies, alternative power, low water-use 
fixtures, automated sport field lighting, and storm water treatment techniques. 


· Incorporate public art and interpretive elements into parks to contribute to park identity and 
character. Interpretative elements can be incorporated into parks of all types to raise 
community awareness about the local environment and history. Art elements are well-suited for 
community parks, citywide parks, urban open space, or other community-serving areas. 







 


· Conduct a cost impact analysis prior to design and development of all new major recreation 
facilities. 


Site Selection and Planning Principles  
Consistency  


Choose park and trail locations that are consistent with the spirit and intent of the Department’s 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and with other policies 
and plans adopted by City Council.  


Environmental Protection  


Locate parks and open spaces in coordination with surrounding new developments, where reasonable, 
to preserve and protect the water quality and wildlife habitat of riparian corridors, wetlands, and flood 
plains and to integrate preserved open space and natural areas into developed areas for both visual 
diversity and the definition of neighborhood character. Protect and enhance natural resources that have 
outstanding recreation, conservation and educational value to the public.  


Accessibility and Connectivity  


Connections are the key to creating an open space system that integrates all parts of the city into a 
cohesive whole. Benefits of trail development range from the preservation of linear open spaces to the 
promotion of active, healthy lifestyles to the creation of an alternative corridor for transportation. 
Ideally, parks and open space should be physically connected to provide continuous ribbons of green 
space woven throughout the city, maximizing value to wildlife and, where appropriate, to commuters 
and recreational users.  


1. Residents should be able to leave their homes and readily access the parks and open space 
system in their neighborhoods 


2. Design bicycle and pedestrian transportation systems for efficiency and connectivity around all 
parks and open spaces.  


Park Design and Development Guidelines  
Park design and development guidelines are provided for each park classification. These guidelines 
include the following for each classification: 


Description 


A definition is presented to describe each park type. This section also describes the typical length of use 
and means of travel to each type of park. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 


Include recommendations for site size, site access, street frontage, parking, etc. 


Features & Amenities to Consider 


These elements should be considered during the master planning and design process for inclusion in all 
new parks of this classification.  







 


Features and Amenities to Avoid 


These elements are not compatible with the park classification and should not be included in the design 
and development of these types of parks.  


 


Community Parks  
Description 
Community parks are areas of diverse recreational activity and serve several neighborhoods. Community 
parks are typically 10 acres or larger but may vary depending on facilities offered.  


Typical community park users: 


· Come from within 1 to 2 miles of the park; 
· Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; and  
· Visit the park for 1 to 3 hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· At least two-thirds of the site should be available for active recreation use. Adequate buffers or 


natural open space areas should separate active recreation use from homes.  
· The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
· Parking requirements should be based upon the facilities provided at the site. Generally, 50 off-


street spaces per ballfield are required, plus an additional 5 spaces per acre of active use areas.  
· Access to the site should be provided via a collector or arterial street with sidewalks and bicycle 


lanes, and trail corridor or greenway system when possible.   


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Playgrounds  
· Open turf area for unstructured play 
· Designated sports fields for baseball, softball, and soccer. Fields may be in a complex within the 


park.  
· Looped pathway system 
· Large picnic shelters 
· Permanent restrooms  
· Tennis and Pickleball courts. Courts may in a complex within the park.  
· Basketball courts 
· Field lighting 
· Skate park 
· Splash pad  
· Off-leash dog area 
· Community gardens  
· Concessions or vendor space  
· Interpretive signage 
· Public art 
· Indoor recreation center 







 


· Landscape improvements including tree planting  
· Storage or maintenance buildings; if visible, these should be architecturally compatible with 


other park elements. Any exterior work areas should be screened from view.  
· Off-Street Parking  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
· N/A 


 


Neighborhood Parks  
Description 
Neighborhood parks serve a variety of age groups within a limited area or neighborhood. Neighborhood 
parks typically include areas for active recreational use such as field or court games and playgrounds. 
Typical size is between 3 to 10 acres. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· At least 50% of site should be relatively level and usable providing space for both active and 


passive uses.  
· The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
· Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks and trail corridor/greenway 


system when possible. Neighborhood parks fronting on arterial streets should be discouraged.  
· On-street parking should be provided. Larger sites may include off-street parking with the 


amount depending on the facilities provided at the site.  
· Active and noise producing facilities, such as basketball courts, should be located at least 100 


feet from nearby homes or property zoned for residential use.  
· Each neighborhood is different and some consideration to making neighborhood parks different 


is important.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Playgrounds  
· Open turf area for unstructured play 
· Basketball (full or half) court 
· Volleyball court 
· Multi-use fields for practice  
· Picnic tables 
· Small picnic shelter  
· Pathway connecting park elements  
· Interpretive signage  
· Natural area (if present at site) 
· Portable or permanent restrooms  
· Landscape improvements including tree planting  
· On-street parking 


 







 


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
· Horticulture or annual plantings unless sponsored and maintained by a neighborhood or 


community group 
· Indoor recreation center  
· Wading pools and similar types of amenities that require staff supervision or highly specialized 


maintenance  
· Sports fields for league play  
· Off-street parking  


 


Mini Parks  
Description 
Mini parks are used to address limited, isolated, or unique recreation needs of concentrated populations 
such as tots or senior citizens. Typical size is 1 acre or less but parks may be categorized as mini parks 
simply based on the type and quantity of facilities they offer.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· All or most of site should be relatively level providing space for both active and passive uses.  
· The site should have at least 25% of park boundary on street frontage.  
· Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Open air shelter or small event space 
· Children’s playground including specialized play equipment such as tot lots  
· Half basketball court  
· Community garden 
· Landscape improvements including tree planting  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
· Off-street parking 
· Permanent restrooms  


 


Special-Use Parks  
Description  
Special use parks are areas for specialized or single purpose recreational activities such as golf courses, 
campgrounds, nature centers, and skate parks. They may also be used to designate areas that are 
primarily used as event space, general gathering areas, expanded trail corridors, or plaza space. There 
are no set standards for size.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines  
· Site size depends on intended use, but should be sufficient to accommodate the special use and 


necessary support facilities.  
· Access to the site should generally be provided by means of a collector arterial street.  







 


· The site should connect to trail corridors if possible 


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Special use facility or facilities  
· Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
· Landscape improvements including tree planting  
· On-street or off-street parking  
· Pathway system 
· Seating  


Features & Amenities to Avoid  
· Uses that conflict or detract from the special use 


 


Trail Corridors & Greenways  
Description 
Trail corridors and greenways include developed, landscaped corridors and more natural, less-
developed greenways that follow linear features such as abandoned railroad rights-of-way, canals, 
power lines, creeks and streams, and other elongated features. 


Typical trail and greenway users: 


· May come from throughout the city; 
· Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
· May use the trail and greenway to travel to a park or other community site; and  
· May visit the trail for one or more hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· Trail corridors should generally follow continuous special feature strips, with a minimum 


corridor width of 50 feet. 
· Trail corridors should link to and be incorporated to neighborhood and community parks to 


provide a linear park system.  
· Trail corridors should link to regional trail systems.  
· Due to the shape, configuration, and potential for user noise in these parks, user impacts on 


adjoining neighbors should be considered. Fences or landscaping may be used to provide some 
privacy for neighbors, but the provision of these features also should consider user safety.  


· Paved pathways should be designed to accommodate maintenance and patrol vehicles.  
· The amount and type (on-street or off-street) of parking provided at trailheads will depend on 


facilities at the site and anticipated trail use.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Paved pathways 
· Viewpoints 
· Seating areas 
· Picnic tables 







 


· Wayfinding signage 
· Trailhead or entry kiosk  
· Landscaped areas, ornamental plantings, turf areas 
· Maintained natural vegetation 
· Fences, landscaping, or other features to control access near adjoining residential areas 
· Parking at major trailheads  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
· Active use facilities such as sport fields and paved courts (only in trail corridor areas) 


Natural Areas 
Description  
Natural areas may preserve or protect environmentally sensitive areas, such as wildlife habitats, stream 
and creek corridors, or unique and/or endangered plant species. Public access may be limited as these 
sites, white often include wetlands, steep hillsides, or other similar spaces. Some natural areas may be 
managed secondarily to provide passive recreation opportunities.  


Typical recreation user of natural areas: 


· Comes from throughout the city; 
· Arrives by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
· Uses a trail within the natural area; and  
· Visits the area for an extended time 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· Site size should be based on natural resource needs. Acreage should be sufficient to preserve or 


protect the resource.  
· Emphasis for acquisition should be on lands offering unique features that have the potential to 


be lost to development. 
· An analysis should be made to determine if unique qualities and conditions exist to warrant 


acquisition.  
· Development and site improvements should be kept to a minimum, keeping the park’s emphasis 


on the natural environment, interpretive features, and educational facilities. 
· Natural open space areas should be managed and maintained for a sense of solitude, 


separation, or environmental protection.  
· Site use should be limited to the numbers and types of visitors the area can accommodate while 


still retaining its natural character and the intended level of solitude.  
· Where feasible, public access and use of these areas should be encouraged, but environmentally 


sensitive areas should be protected from overuse.  
· Off-street parking should be considered for larger natural areas if a trail is located within the 


site. The amount will depend upon the anticipated trail use. Otherwise, on-street parking should 
be provided.  


Features and Amenities to Consider 
· Interpretive signage 







 


· Small picnic shelter 
· Limited picnic areas 
· Trail and pathway system  
· Trailhead or entry kiosk 
· Viewpoints 
· Interpretive or education facilities  
· Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
· On-street or off-street parking (depending on anticipated amount of site use) 


Features and Amenities to Avoid 
· Depends on site 


Guidance for Developers 
Sustainable communities include parks and open spaces where residents and visitors can enjoy 
recreation, connect with nature, and gather with neighbors. Thanks to the foresight of and vision of 
community leaders, citizens, and land developers, Stoughton boasts an extensive park system. To 
continue with this standard, a parkland dedication is required for developments.  


The City depends on neighborhood and community parks to meet the recreational needs of its citizens. 
Land development should meet the needs of the residents. These classes of parks are dedicated when 
land is developed and are the basis of the sections below.  


Design and Review Process for City Parks 
The process described below is the typical sequence of reviews conducted with the City of Stoughton’s 
Director of Parks & Recreation and the consultant. This process encompasses the majority of projects 
and will serve as a general framework for providing direction regarding the specifics of the design and 
construction documents. The outline below is the basic format and can be adapted as needed for special 
case scenarios. Private sector development, renovation, or special use areas should follow this process 
to the closest extent possible. Other services and procedures may be required depending on the scope 
of the project.  


Nothing in this document shall be construed as a requirement or endorsement for the consultant to 
provide services for white they are not qualified or appropriately licensed. The consultant shall exercise 
their professional judgement regarding design specifics. All projects shall conform to local, state, and 
federal codes, laws, and ordinances.  


1. Scoping/Programming Meeting  
 
This meeting will occur during the scoping phase, and prior to the execution of a consultant’s 
conceptual plan for the development is completed. The Parks and Recreation Director will 
convey the needs outlined in the city’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, city’s 
Comprehensive Plan, county’s Park and Open Space Plan, and other relevant plans. The City will 
also provide any available information regarding site criteria selection and the Site Evaluation 
Report.  
 


2. Conceptual Plan Review  







 


 
The consultant will prepare the Site Evaluation Report for this meeting with the Parks and 
Recreation Director. The intent at this time will be to review possible site selections for the 
parkland within the development. These conceptual plans will be sketch quality, fairly abstract 
diagrams that demonstrate the location, arrangement, size and spacing of the park. The 
intention is to identify the opportunities and constraints of various layouts. Once a site is 
selected, it will need to be approved by the Parks & Recreation Committee.  
 


3. Site Master Plan Review  
 
The consultant will prepare schematic design drawings which will setup the preliminary 
arrangement of programmatic and physical components, including hardscape elements, 
accessibility, circulation, drainage, grades and slopes, planting scheme, furnishings, and play 
equipment. This is intended to be a collaborative process and based on the complexity of the 
project, there may be several iterations of schematic design solutions. The reviews may include 
sketch quality drawings or hardline drawings.  
 
Once a schematic design is resolved, the consultant shall prepare a final line drawing. If the 
project scope includes a public meeting, the consultant will prepare rendered presentation 
graphics. A budget work sheet with realistic cost estimates for any site improvements must be 
included with the plan. All Park Master Plans must be adopted by City Council. 
 


4. Design Development/65% Construction Documents  
 
The consultant will prepare a set of drawings that will create the framework for the final 
drawings and that start filling in the specifics of the design. A meeting will be held to review the 
progress of the 65% construction drawings, and will ascertain that the schedule and budget of 
the project is on track and intent of the design is being followed.  


 


5. 95% Construction Documents  
The consultant will prepare and submit a set of construction drawings to the 95% complete 
stage. The drawings shall be prepared to a level that is considered biddable and buildable. A 
meeting will be held to review the submittal to ascertain that all details and specifications 
required are included in the drawings. This will allow the City to identify any particulars that 
need clarification or correction.  
 
A preliminary cost estimate shall also be prepared by the consultant at this stage.  
 
If the project will be publicly bid, the consultant shall prepare and submit a contract manual and 
associated bidding documents to the Parks and Recreation Director.  
  


6. Final Documents for Construction Documents and Pricing/Bidding  


Commented [DG1]: The planning process for new parks 
has not had a 


Commented [DG2]: This is needed and was not done 
when Nordic Ridge Park was developed.  


Commented [DG3]:  







 


After approval of the 95% plans, specifications and estimate, the consultant will prepare and 
submit final construction documents.  


 
The consultant will coordinate the distribution of plan sets, participate in the pre-bid meeting, 
review the bids, prepare a bid tabulation, and a recommendation of award, and verify the 
contract and agreement documents.  
 


7. Pre-Construction Meeting  
 
Prior to the start of construction, all parties will meet to review the specifics of the construction 
process. 


 
 
Site Evaluation Report 
Once a site within a development is selected by the developer for the parkland dedication, the 
developer should prepare a site evaluation report. The report shall include and follow the following 
format: 


1. Title Page  
 


2. Executive Summary  


The executive summary summarizes the type and size of the planned park; briefly describes the 
sites; Indicated which site was selected and the rationale for choosing the selected site.  


3. Site Selection Process 


Explains the site selection criteria and the criteria rating and weighting schemes. Include the 
following graphics in this section: 


o Context map showing site(s) and its immediate surroundings 
o Location map showing all of the sites that were considered and key landmarks or 


reference points such as major streets 
o Aerial photography of each site 
o Photographic panoramas  
o Site topographic map  


 
4. Comparative Evaluation of Candidate Sites 


Describe the strengths and weaknesses of each individual site. Include the following graphics: 


o Site evaluation matrix 
o Tabulated data summarizing the individual site evaluations allowing for comparison 


among the alternative sites 
 


5. Conclusion  







 


Briefly summarize the site selected, process used, and determination.  


6. References 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting  
 Tis site selection process is used for the continuing acquisition of open space for new parks and public 
recreation areas. 


Minimum Criteria  
All sites must meet all of the “base” or threshold criteria listed below to be considered for further 
evaluation. This step ensures the sites meet at least the minimum standards for: 


Site Size 


The minimum land dedication must provide 80% of the land required per the parkland dedication 
requirement. Trail corridors are counted towards the parkland dedication requirement. Storm water 
retention ponds located within a park do not count towards the land dedication.  


Slopes 


Land dedicated for parkland shall have slopes of 5% or less in 50% of the parkland for a neighborhood 
park and 75% of the parkland for a community park. Land can be graded by the developer to provide 
less slope.  


Contiguous Land  


Land shall be dedicated in a contiguous parcel. An exception to this is if the development is fragmented 
by an arterial street, highway, or railroad.  


Street Frontage  


A minimum of 50% of the perimeter of the land dedicated must have street frontage.  


Existing Conditions  


The site shall not be encumbered by overhead utility lines, easements of any type, unstable soils, 
floodplains, wetlands, or toxic conditions which may limit the opportunity for park and recreation 
development.  


Pedestrian and Bikeway Linkages  


Parks should be linked by an off-road trail corridor. The City’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 
conceptually outlines trail routes and should be taken into consideration when planning routes. Regional 
trail connections shall be protected and be incorporated into the park layout when necessary. The 
regional trail map can be found in Dane County’s Parks & Open Space Plan.   


 
Base Criteria  
Dedication Percent (20 Points) 


80-85 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 1 point  


Commented [DG4]: This will help staff and alderpersons 
judge parkland dedication for developments.  


Commented [DG5]: What is the acceptable amount? 
Developers may need some flexibility for their development 
to work and they are required to pay the park fee in leiu of. 
On the other hand, we are currently short parkland based 
on the NRPA standard.  


Commented [DG6]: Slopes of 5% or less allow for ADA 
access which is needed to programmed features of the park 
such as restrooms, playgrounds, and sport courts.  


Commented [DG7]: I have looked at numerous design 
guidelines from across the country. There is no set standard. 
They vary from 100% to no requirement. The benefits and 
drawbacks are outlined in the weighting system document. 







 


85-95 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 7 points 


95-100 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 14 points 


Over the parkland dedication requirement = 20 points  


 


Slopes (15 points)  


Sloped (over 5 percent slope over 50 percent of the site) = 1 point 


Moderate (between 2-5 percent slope over 75 percent of the site) = 7 points  


Flat (less than 2 percent slope over 75 percent of the site) = 15 points  


 


Street Frontages (20 points) 


50-70 percent Street Frontage = 5 point  


70-85 percent Street Frontage = 10 points  


85-100 percent Street Frontage = 20 points  


 


Linkage (15 points) 


Park is linked to other parks with off-road trail = 1 point 


Park is linked with 50-75-foot-wide off-road trail corridor = 7 points 


Park is linked with a 75+ foot wide off-road trail corridor = 15 points  


 


Bonus Criteria 


Park size is over 10 acres = 5 points 


Park can be expanded with future development = 2 points  


Historical or cultural resources on-site = 10 points 


Relatively undisturbed sites supporting significant and diverse plant and wildlife habitat = 10 points 


Waterfront access = 5 points  


Healthy trees = 5 points   


 


 


Commented [DG8]: This will need to be discussed and 
refined 







Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
Dedication Percent 


National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) standards recommend a minimum of 10.5 acres of 
dedicated parkland per 1000 residents. The parkland dedication is setup to achieve this based on a 
calculation using census household size data for Stoughton. If the dedication is 100% fulfilled, then the 
parkland dedication will fully meet the NRPA standard. The fee in leiu of parkland is calculated to 
purchase parkland that cannot be dedicated. It is preferable to have the parkland within the 
development so that it can satisfy needs of the residents living within the development.  


The city currently has 130.64 acres of active use parkland. This is 4.12 acres short of meeting the 
national standard of 10.5 acres per 1,000 residents.  


 


Source: 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 


 


Slopes 


Having areas with little to no slope allows for easier development for park amenities such as park 
shelters and playgrounds. Ball fields also require relatively flat areas. The use area for a full-size soccer 
field can be up to 95 yards wide and 140 yards long or 2.75 acres. A neighborhood park can be as small 
as 3 acres. Slopes of less than 5% also provide for compliance with ADA for pathways.  


 


Street Frontages 


There are many reasons to require the provision of street frontage along City parks, including: 
 


· Accessibility – To ensure that public parks are easily accessible from all directions. 







Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
· Safety – Having a high level of visibility, or “eyes on the park,” increases safety for park visitors. 
· Crime Prevention – Similar to safety, having a high degree of park visibility decreases the 


incidents of crime such as graffiti. 
· Parking – Having street frontage and on-street parking can provide a tremendous amount of 


parking for park visitors.  
· Boundaries – In places where private backyards back up to public parks there is a tendency for 


the private backyards, and related items such as sheds and personal storage, to encroach onto 
the public land. 


· Recognition – It is important the public lands that are provided to meet the recreational needs 
of the community be easily identifiable and recognizable as public spaces where everyone is 
welcome. 


 
However, there are many reasons why having a significant amount of street frontage may 
not be feasible and/or desirable, including: 
 


· Safety – Vehicle traffic associated with street adjacency may present a hazard to children and 
pets playing in parks. 


· Resource Impacts - Vehicle use, and related impacts such as leaking oil or the transport of 
noxious weed seed, can negatively impact resource- or critical land-based parks. 


· Noise Impacts – Vehicle noise can be detrimental to a park experience, especially if parks are 
used as an escape and an opportunity to enjoy nature.  


· Visual impacts – The sight of vehicles can negatively impact the aesthetic qualities of a park, and 
therefore diminish the enjoyment of the park. 


· Visibility – Some park users may feel safer when private backyards back up to the park rather 
than parked cars. 


· Size – Some parks, especially mini parks, will simply be too small to allow for the provision of 
significant street frontage. 


 


Current Stoughton Neighborhood Park Street Frontage Percentage  


All distances were found using GIS and are approximate.  


Bjoin Park – 1240 LF of street frontage, 2000 LF other frontage, 38% of street frontage. 1350 LF of 
railroad frontage 


Dunkirk Park – 235 LF of street frontage, 750 LF other frontage, 24% of street frontage. 250 LF of water 
frontage 


East Park – 975 LF of street frontage, 585 LF of other frontage, 63% of street frontage. 


Lowell Park (Baseball Diamond Area) – 920 LF of street frontage, 335 LF of other frontage, 73% of street 
frontage. 


Lowell Park (Playground & Garden Area) – 1115 LF of street frontage, 3100 LF of other frontage, 26% of 
street frontage. 


Nordic Ridge Park – 605 LF of street frontage, 1530 LF of other frontage, 28% of street frontage.  


Norse Park – 850 LF of street frontage, 1600 LF of other frontage, 35% of street frontage 







Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
Schefelker Park – 205 LF of street frontage, 3500 LF of other frontage, 6% of street frontage 


Veteran’s Park – 940 LF of street frontage, 925 LF of other frontage, 50% of street frontage. 575 LF of 
water frontage  


Virgin Lake Park – 530 LF of street frontage, 2750 LF of other frontage, 16% of street frontage. 


Westview Ridge Park – 1250 of street frontage, 3200 LF of other frontage, 28% of street frontage.  


Area Examples  


Middleton: 


Any land to be dedicated as a requirement of this section shall be reasonably adaptable for the intended 
park and recreational uses and shall be at a location convenient to the people to be served. Factors used 
in evaluating the adequacy of a proposed park and recreation area shall include, but not be limited to, 
size, shape, topography, geography, tree cover, access, and location. The determination of land 
suitability will be at the sole discretion of the Plan Commission acting on the recommendation of the 
Park, Recreation and Forestry Commission. All lands dedicated under this section shall have at least one 
hundred feet of frontage on a public street. 


Fitchburg:   


Fitchburg uses a formula that is attached to this document.  


Linkage 


Goal 1.2.4: Promote bicycle and pedestrian facilities throughout Stoughton and the surrounding areas. 


Objective A: Improve local route connectivity throughout the area to parks, conservancies, schools, local 
business, and regional trails.  


Goal 1.2.8: Stress the benefits of larger neighborhood and community parks that provide a wide range 
of facilities over small playground and tot-lot facilities.  


Objective E: Stress connectivity of natural corridors and park open spaces to allow for wildlife and user 
movement.  


Connecting parks and open space with trail corridors provides an opportunity for people and wildlife to 
freely move between larger plots of land. They promote physical activity, support economic 
development, and benefit the environment. The trail corridor is a zone that includes the trail and the 
area to the sides.  The 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan provides conceptual routes and 
park locations.  


I was unable to find any specific recommendations on trail corridor widths. The book Greenways: A 
Guide To Planning Design And Development states that the corridor width should be based on the 
objective. There is no minimum and maximum width that can be advised. Setting a minimum width is 
good policy. I contacted Jim Woodford from the WDNR regarding the width and this is what he had to 
say: 







Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
“I’ve heard back from my colleagues here at DNR and we were in agreement that for wildlife 
corridors there really isn’t a set minimum width.  The group’s consensus was it should be 
designed to fit the species you are trying to provide connectivity between larger suitable habitat 
areas.  I did find a fairly complete summary of literature on this topic attached.  Seems like 
Appendix 1 is very complete and after a quick review, my recommendation would be to strive 
for at least a 100’ travel corridor and not go below 50’ in width.  It seems if you go below 50’ you 
wouldn’t be providing suitable travel habitat for many wildlife species at all.” 


Recommended trail tread width is 12 feet for suburban non-motorized users with a 10 feet minimum. A 
2-foot-wide cleared, and graded shoulder on each side is also needed. When rail lines are converted to 
trail use, the state general acquires a 100-foot wide corridor. 


 


Source: Trails for the Twenty First Century, Flink, Olka and Searns  


 


 







Points & Weighting Background Information  


 


 


Source: Toole Design 


Area Example 


Middleton: 


Parkways, Greenways, and Environmental Corridors When parkways, greenways, and environmental 
corridors are to be provided within the proposed plat or certified survey, and they are not officially 
mapped in enough detail to determine the exact dimensions, they shall generally have a minimum width 
of two hundred (200) feet and in no case shall they be less than one hundred (100) feet wide 


 


Park Size & Future Park Expansion 


Goal 1.2.8: Stress the benefits of larger neighborhood and community parks that provide a wide range 
of facilities over small playground and tot-lot facilities.  


Objective B: Communicate the importance of dynamic, multi-purpose parks and recreational facilities as 
a component of Stoughton’s regional draw and economic development potential.  


The 2018 CORP highlighted that the City was 40.92 acres short of community park parkland. Community 
parks are classified as parks over 10 acres in size and are dynamic in nature with the different uses they 
can have.  


If developers place parks so that they can be expanded in the future, then they can be made into 
community park space as the City grows.  


 







9/11/2020 Chapter 24 - LAND DIVISION | Code of Ordinances | Fitchburg, WI | Municode Library


https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH24LADI_S24-9REIM 1/3


i)
(1)


a.


b.


Street frontage for dedicated parkland.
Street frontage for dedicated parklands shall be provided and paid for by the developer or
subdivider in the amount of 150 lineal feet of frontage or in accord with the following,
whichever is greater.


For development projects or land divisions of less than 80 dwelling units, the developer
or subdivider shall provide frontage in accord with the following table:


Single-family residential 6.0


lineal


feet per


dwelling


unit


Two-family residential 3.0


lineal


feet per


dwelling


unit


Multifamily 0.75


lineal


feet per


dwelling


unit


 


For development projects or land divisions of 80 or more dwelling units, lineal
street frontage shall be provided in accord with the following:


Single-family Square


root of


the


square


footage


required


to be


dedicated







9/11/2020 Chapter 24 - LAND DIVISION | Code of Ordinances | Fitchburg, WI | Municode Library


https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH24LADI_S24-9REIM 2/3


(2)


(3)


(4)


Two-family Square


root of


the


square


footage


required


to be


dedicated


with this


factor


multiplied


by 0.50


Multifamily Square


root of


the


square


footage


required


to be


dedicated


with this


factor


then


multiplied


by 0.13


 


The council, upon receiving a recommendation from the parks commission and plan
commission, shall have the authority to allow alternative dimensions for frontagesand the park
if it can be found that the objectives of access and visibility can be fulfilled.
In calculating the required frontage for multifamily residential projects the maximum number of
two bedroom units allowed under the zoning ordinance shall be used unless a different
number is committed to by agreement with the city or by city approved deed restriction.
Areas zoned to the SmartCode District, and which meet the minimum acreage for the specific
community unit type in chapter 23 shall not be subject to this section, but instead shall
provide and install street frontage as required for all civic or open space lands through the



https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH23SMDI





9/11/2020 Chapter 24 - LAND DIVISION | Code of Ordinances | Fitchburg, WI | Municode Library


https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH24LADI_S24-9REIM 3/3


approved regulating plan. For situations where the community unit type is less than the
required minimum size in chapter 23, the above regulations of this subsection (i) shall apply.



https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH23SMDI



		Park Design Guidelines

		Overview

		Purpose

		Mission Statement

		Goals



		General Planning and Design Policies

		Site Selection and Planning Principles

		Park Design and Development Guidelines

		Community Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Neighborhood Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Mini Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Special-Use Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Trail Corridors & Greenways

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Natural Areas

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features and Amenities to Consider

		Features and Amenities to Avoid





		Guidance for Developers

		Design and Review Process for City Parks

		Site Evaluation Report

		Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting

		Minimum Criteria

		Base Criteria







		Point & Weighting System Background

		Fitchburg Street Frontage






 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 
 
CC: 


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, September 15, 2020 at 6:00 pm 
This is a virtual meeting. Please use the information below to attend: 
 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/488914301  
 
You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States: +1 (669) 224-3412  
 
Access Code: 488-914-301  
 
 
 
Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Tim Swadley 
 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Judi Krebs, Pat Groom, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Desi Weum, 
Council Members 


 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    
 
2 Approval of Minutes from August 18, 2020 
 
3 Communication  
 Director’s Report   
  
Item #   OLD BUSINESS     
4   Park Design Guidelines (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
5 51 West Development Parkland Dedication (Discussion & Possible 


Action)  
 
6   Future Agenda Items    
   Park Design Guidelines  
         
Item #   ADJOURNMENT  



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/488914301

tel:+16692243412,,488914301






Director’s Report 
September 2020 


 


COVID-19/Operations   


- Worked with the Recreation Supervisor to develop program modifications.  
o Flag football and miniball soccer have been modified. We are limited to class sizes of 15 


due to COVID-19 restrictions. Registration for both programs has been good and flag 
football filled on the first day. The coach is unable to volunteer beyond this so we are 
limited to this.  


o Gazebo Musikk has been modified to be a drive-in series for this season. There are 
concerts scheduled for Thursdays and Fridays through the end of September. The first 
concert was a soft opening with little promotion. This was to help us figure out the 
logistics of everything being involved. The second concert was promoted and there were 
55 cars that watched the show. It has been well-received so far. 


o I worked with the Youth Center Manager to develop a plan for the fall. Two surveys 
were sent out to families; one was for educational support/tutoring and the other was 
for recreational/social activities. There will be virtual tutoring starting in September and 
small group in-person tutoring at the Youth Center for Spanish speaking children. We 
are going to try doing small group meet-ups at parks for social interaction which parents 
felt children were missing due to no sports and school.  


ADA Transition Plan 


- Put together a drat prioritization of improvements. The next step is to meet with MSA to discuss 
the prioritization. Some of these items were included in the CIP.  


High School Baseball Diamond Light Removal Project 


- We are waiting for the ospreys to migrate south for the winter. They were still actively nesting 
the week of September 7th.  


- I have been communicating with a community member about the plan for the lights and the 
ospreys. He lives near the high school and has been watching them. He seems satisfied with our 
plan to keep a pole with nesting platform due to DNR recommendations.  


Riverfront Project 


- Attended permitting meeting with the DNR.  
- Scheduled a project coordination meeting between the County engineers and REP.  
- Reviewed draft hydraulics video.  


Rotary Park Project 


- I am actively trying to get a second quote for the excavation. Moyer’s will be providing one with 
Fox Excavation doing the excavating.   


- I received a contact for an excavation company through a developer and the company was too 
busy to work on the project. Other local excavation companies have replied saying the work was 
outside of their ability due to the technicality of it.   


Bjoin Park  







Director’s Report 
September 2020 


- Created a presentation for the master plan and presented it to City Council.  
- I have started to reach out to concrete companies regarding the sport court. 
- I reached out to ERC about what a grow in program for the prairie would consist of and the cost. 


The first year would require 3-4 mowings depending on the amount of rain we receive. Each 
mowing would be approximately $1,000. The second year would require 2-3 mowings 
depending on the amount of rain we receive. The third year would be a prescribed burn. The 
fourth and fifth years would consist of spot mowing treatments. I have budgeted $18,000 in the 
CIP for the prairie. This should provide enough money for the first year of maintenance and the 
plantings. The upfront cost for the prairie is higher than keeping the remaining turf grass, but 
will provide savings in the long-term. It is also more aesthetically pleasing since the turf cannot 
be mowed during wet periods and is better for the environment.  
 


Misc.  


- I was contacted by a skateboarder looking to build a new skate park. I explained to him that a 
new skate park is planned for Mandt Park (part of the master plan) and the schedule for 
improvements based on phasing. I told him that the best approach would be to rehab and/or 
add low cost features to the existing park. I told him to meet with his friends that are skaters to 
come up with a list of improvements that they like and we can have a Zoom meeting to talk 
about them.  


- I was contacted by a mountain biker looking to build a single track trail at Schefelker Park. There 
are mountain bike trails planned for Lowell Park, so I am going to steer him to that park. After I 
was contacted, I reached out to Jon Augspurger with Capital Off-Road Pathfinders with 
questions about building and maintaining trails.  I would like to develop a volunteer group who 
maintains the trail. This is other Dane County communities have approached these.  


- I worked with the Mayor and developer on the Highway 51 West site selection for parkland. We 
went through several iterations throughout the summer. Trail corridors, protecting regional trail 
connections, park linkage, street frontage, and dedication acreage were discussed.  


- Took vacation between 8/31-9/4.  
 





